			
Environmental Compliance and Operations (ECO)
Solicitation NNJ10336475R
Questions and Answers

Question 1: The Key Personnel Section (MA2) requests that we provide previous positions (last 5 years) for Key Personnel. Given that Senior staff such as the Program Manager have very relevant experience in a much longer term than 5 years, would you please increase this to the past 15 years?

Answer 1: Section L.19.3.2 MA2 (page L-29) was revised in Amendment 007 to clarify that a minimum of 5 years is required for previous positions and “experience” was added to the list of items requested for key personnel.  The sentence now reads:  “For the proposed key personnel listed in Clause H.5, provide their education, experience, current position, current significant responsibilities or projects, and previous positions (last 5 years as a minimum).”			 

Question 2: Section L-19.6 (C), states that “The Offeror shall provide evidence of an adequate accounting system as determined by the cognizant Government administrative office for accumulating and reporting incurred costs.”  It further states “A contract may only be awarded to the Offeror who are determined to have an adequate accounting system”. If an Offeror has not had an accounting system adequacy review, but can get DCAA to initiate one right away, would NASA consider removing the requirement of submitting evidence with the proposal, and just allow for NASA to contact DCAA prior to the award to verify adequacy of the accounting system of the selected company? This approach would comply with the referenced FAR requirement, as this is only required prior to award, not at time of submittal.
		
Answer 2: Section L.19.6 (C) on page L-42 was revised in Amendment 007 to clarify that the offeror shall provide the current status of its accounting system if known.  If an accounting system review has not been performed and/or the status is unknown, the offeror shall so state.  After receipt of proposals, the Government will submit the request to the cognizant audit office to provide an accounting system adequacy review if required.  

Question 3: Are the schedule and the critical path required in the BOE section (B) of TA1 (page L-28) limited to the first year of the contract, or what is the time period that it needs to cover?
		
Answer 3: Assuming the question is in regards to L.19.3.1 TA1 B. (page L-18).  Information, including the schedule and critical path, requested for the Cost Reimbursable IDIQ Task Orders are for the first contract year as required by the stated period of performance in the Cost Reimbursable IDIQ Task Orders, Attachment L-3 2.0 and 3.0.	

Questions 4.a-4.e: Page L-30 for Past Performance states “If the Offeror is requesting past performance information from evaluations from WSTF or JSC, please be advised that a Limited Communication with Industry Notice has been issued and is in effect.”

4.a What does Limited Communication with Industry mean? 

4.b Would we be allowed to submit a past performance questionnaire to our current WSTF CO? 

4.c If not allowed, this would unfairly limit a bidder’s ability to have its full experience considered. 

4.d Would our PM be able to submit a past performance questionnaire to any of the WSTF clients? 

4.e What is the process to submit past performance questionnaires under a Limited Communication with Industry Notice?

Answers 4.a-4.e: 
4.a In accordance with NFS 1815.201(f)(i), the contracting officer shall direct all personnel associated with the acquisition to refrain from communicating with prospective offerors and to refer all inquiries to the contracting officer.   WSTF and JSC civil servants have been directed to refrain from communicating with industry on any matters related to this procurement.  This direction does not preclude the offeror from submitting past performance questionnaires to WSTF or JSC civil servants and requesting them to submit the questionnaire to the Contracting Officer.  It does preclude civil servants from providing a status to the offeror on whether or not the questionnaire was submitted.  This information can only be obtained from the contracting officer.

4.b  See response to 4.a.  The offeror can submit a past performance questionnaire to the current WSTF Contracting Officer.  

4.c See response to 4.b.

4.d See response to 4.a.  The offeror may submit the past performance questionnaire to any of their points of contact, including WSTF or JSC.

4.e  See response to 4.a.  Per L.19.4 (c), the offeror shall submit the Past Performance Questionnaire, Attachment L-2 to all of the point of contracts, including any evaluators at WSTF or JSC.  Per Attachment L-2, Transmittal Letter, the evaluator is requested to “complete the questionnaire and submit it by 7/20/12 directly to the Contracting Officer.”

Question 5: Page L-31, Section L.19.4 (d), states, regarding the past environmental compliance performance on contracts performed in the last three years, that “If a joint venture or prime-subcontractor relationship is proposed, the same information shall be provided for each company proposed.” Since only the past performance of major subcontractors will be evaluated, is this requirement limited to major subcontractors?

Answer 5:  Yes.  Section L.19.4 (d) requires past performance information from the offeror, joint ventures, and major subcontractors.  Section L.19.4 (d) was revised in Amendment 007 to remove the “prime-subcontractor” wording and replaced with “major subcontractor.”

Question 6: If we use the same projects as we did on the initial submittal, will it be necessary to have our references fill out past performance questionnaires again for those same projects?

Answer 6: References should complete the Past Performance Questionnaire.  

Question 7: On the total cost summary, I do not see anything for the New Mexico Gross Receipts tax.  The template asks for the New Mexico Gross Receipts tax in the rate development worksheets but it should be applied at the total cost summary level.  Will the solicitation be revised to ask for the New Mexico Gross Receipts tax at the total cost summary level?

Answer 7: Yes, the RFP was revised in Amendment 007 to remove the New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax (NMGRT) columns in Attachment L-4, IDIQ Pricing Template, to both the IDIQ Contractor Specific Template (ICST) for FFP and the ICST for CPFF.  The NMGRT data is now required at the bottom of the Task Order Pricing Templates (TOPT) TO1-FFP, TOPT TO2-CPFF, and TOPT TO3-CPFF.  In addition, Section L.19.5 was revised in Amendment 007 to delete the sixth paragraph under item 1 on page L-35, IDIQ (Rates Development) – Contractor Specific Template (ICST), to remove the NMGRT requirement from this section.

Question 8: Task 1FAENOP item 1, Program Management and Supervisory Team, includes all management and supervisory activities in the fixed price task. If a supervisor performs some technical work on the cost plus tasks, is his time required to be included in the fixed price or can it be allocated to the cost plus tasks that he may be supporting?

Answer 8: The offeror shall propose the resources necessary to perform the Performance Work Statement (PWS).  As stated in the RFP, all program management and supervisory resources shall be identified in the 1FAENOP task order.  If the offeror chooses to allocate supervisory resources to perform technical work in the cost reimbursable task orders, the offeror shall clearly demonstrate this allocation and indicate the position as a nonsupervisory labor category. 

Question 9: Page L-42 section C. Business System Adequacy requires “The offeror shall provide evidence of an adequate accounting system as determined by the cognizant Government administrative office for accumulating and reporting incurred costs.” This requires that DCAA performs an accounting system adequacy review. Our regional DCAA office has told us that they have not done one accounting system adequacy review in 4 years. The review also cannot be requested by the company, but needs to be requested by a CO. So, getting a review is not something under the offeror’s control. So, we respectfully request that the requirement of providing evidence is changed to stating that NASA will request an accounting system adequacy review to be performed by DCAA and that being found to have an adequate accounting system will be required in order to be awarded the contract.

Answer 9: See response to Question 2.  

Question 10: The new requirement in Section L-19.6(c) that requires evidence of an adequate accounting system to be included in the proposal is restrictive to any and all small businesses that may not have been reviewed by any cognizant Government administrative office, due to no requests by any Government entities for such a review. This could unintentionally restrict competition due to no fault of the offerors. As any adequacy determination could be requested by NASA prior to award, may we respectfully request that this new requirement be removed? 

Answer 10: See response to Question 2.  

Questions 11.a-11.b: Page L-18 requires “Offerors are required to identify and include all non-labor costs for the Fixed Price IDIQ Task Order. Offerors are required to identify and estimate any non-labor resource dollars for the cost reimbursable IDIQ portion of this contract. A narrative BOE shall be provided that depicts the Offeror’s understanding of the required non-labor resources”. This seems to contradict page L-28 statement that “Use of the GRE for non-labor resources in Table L-8 is elective. Offerors are free to incorporate the GRE into their Cost/Price Volume or to propose non-labor resource costs as deemed appropriate to accomplish the Task Orders.”

11.a If a bidder elects to use the GRE in its cost proposal for non-labor resources, are we still required to follow instructions in page L-18 and provide a BOE for the non-labor resources? We respectfully suggest that NASA removes the requirement of a BOE for non-labor resources in L-18 if someone elects to use the GRE. 

11.b If a bidder estimates the non-labor resources to meet page L-18 of the RFP and then elects to use the GRE in the cost proposal for the non-labor resources, would NASA clearly state that this will not be considered an inconsistency between the cost proposal and the TA1 section.

Answers 11.a-11.b: 
11.a.  Yes, if the offeror elects to use the GRE in its cost proposal for non-labor resources, the offeror is required to follow instructions on page L-18 and provide a BOE for the non-labor resources.   

11.b.  All information submitted by the offeror shall be consistent across all Volumes.  

Question 12: Due to the large amount of information required in this proposal response, will NASA please consider allowing tables to be in 10 point font, allowing the text for the document to be Times New Roman, and/or increasing the page limit?

Answer 12: Section L.19.2(a) (page L-15) was revised in Amendment 007 to read: “Except for Volume III Cost/Price Proposal, all volumes shall be prepared and submitted using a non-compressed Arial font with single-spaced no smaller than 10 point text printed on both sides of the sheet.  No smaller than 10 point Arial font may be used for figures and tables.  Data utilizing font smaller than Arial 10 point will not be evaluated.”    
  
Question 13: Exhibit L-3 Task Order 1FAENOP, task requirement 1, includes “Provide a program management and supervisor team to oversee and manage all aspects of the environmental compliance and restoration program. This program management team shall include senior management personnel, first-line supervisors, and administrative assistance, as needed.”

If a supervisor performs a technical activity in a given task (such as preparing a deliverable for the task, perform an activity in the field, etc), is the intention of NASA that we include that supervisor’s time in 1FAENOP task to consolidate all time of supervisors in this task, even if they are doing direct work (not only oversight and management) in another task, or are we supposed to only include the time they use for supervision here?

Answer 13:  See response to Question 8.

Questions 14.a-14.b: Exhibit L-3 Task Order 1FAENOP, task requirement 1, includes “Provide a program management and supervisor team to oversee and manage all aspects of the environmental compliance and restoration program. This program management team shall include senior management personnel, first-line supervisors, and administrative assistance, as needed”.

14.a Is it the intention of NASA that we include in this task all the administrative support to the tasks or only the administrative support required in the oversight and management of the tasks? 

14.b If an administrative staff member is performing an administrative function that is related to a direct activity of the other tasks and not to oversight and management of the tasks, such as preparing the technical report of a deliverable in a given task, is that supposed to be included in this task or in the task they are supporting directly?

Answers 14.a-14.b: All administrative assistance activities shall be priced in the fixed price task order, 1FAENOP as indicated in Attachment L-7, Workload Indicators, Section 1.0, WBS 1.1 and in accordance with Section B.10, Rate Table For Pricing Firm-Fixed-Price Task/Delivery Orders (Applicable only to fixed-price).

Question 15: Section L.19.4, Volume II – Past Performance, requires that Consent Letters (Attachment L-2a) be executed. The directions on Attachment L-2a say that the Consent Letters should be included in the Past Performance volume. Are the Consent Letters outside of the page count for Volume II?

Answer 15: Yes. The Consent Letters will not be included in the page limit for the Past Performance Volume II.  For clarification, “Consent Letters” was added in Amendment 007 to L.19.2, Table L-2, on page L-14 under Volume II - Past Performance to read “Past Performance Questionnaires and Consent Letters.”

Question 16: In Attachment L-3, Sample Task Order 2.0, Section 4 there is a scope description for the project management plan (part 1.a) that says "The scope of the project management plan shall include the development of the Investigation Work Plan and related documents, to the 100% (final) milestone."  The overall scope of Task Order 2, Section 4 is related to the performance of an RFI and preparation of an RFI Report.  It is Task Order 2, Section 3 that contains the scope related to the preparation of an IWP.  Is the language in part 1.a a copy error from Task Order 2, Section 3?  Should part 1.a it read "The scope of the project management plan shall include the performance of an RFI and development of an RFI Report, to the 100% (final) milestone?"

Answer 16:  Attachment L-3, Sample Task Order 2.0, Section 4: Performance of RCRA Facility Investigation (RFI) was revised in Amendment 007.  Section 4.1.a. was revised to “Develop a Project Plan.  The scope of the Project Plan shall include the performance of the RFI and the development of the related documents, to the 100% (final) milestone.”  The first paragraph under Section 4 was also revised from “The scope of an IWP could include…” to “The scope of the approved IWP could include…” for additional clarification.

Question 17: The RFP requires offerors to include in their proposals “evidence of commitment to the program” for each Key Personnel.  See RFP, Attachment L-1, at 2 of 2.  Will NASA accept the Key Personnel commitment letters that were included in the offeror’s previous proposal submission?

Answer 17: No.  New Key Personnel commitment letters are required per Section L.19.3.2, sub-factor element MA2 (page L-29).

Question 18: The RFP requires offerors to include in their proposals “evidence of commitment to the program” for each Key Personnel.  See RFP, Attachment L-1, at 2 of 2.  Will NASA accept commitment letters for Key Personnel who also appear in another offeror’s proposal?

Answer 18: Yes.  Commitment letters for Key Personnel who also appear in another offeror’s proposal will be accepted.  

Question 19: The RFP requires offerors to submit Past Performance Questionnaires to all points of contact references provided for each past contract submitted in Volume II.  If we are using the same past contracts that were submitted with the original proposal in 2010, will NASA accept and evaluate the Past Performance Questionnaires submitted by the references for the original proposal?

Answer 19: References should complete a new questionnaire.  
 
Question 20: Amendment 006 now requires offerors to submit up to five past contracts in Volume II for the proposed Program Manager. If our proposed Program Manager was involved in the past contract(s) submitted by the offeror or major subcontractor, will NASA evaluate that past contract(s) for both the performance of the offeror and the proposed Program Manager?  Will NASA also evaluate the Past Performance Questionnaire submitted by the point of contact reference(s) for both the offeror and the proposed Program Manager for such past contracts?

Answer 20: Yes.  NASA will allow the same past contract(s) to be used for the past performance of the offeror and Program Manager.  Yes, NASA will allow the same past contract(s) to be used for the Past Performance Questionnaires for both the offeror and the proposed Program Manager.   

Question 21: Two changes implemented in Amendment 006, related to Volume II – Past Performance, require offerors to submit information not required in the original proposal:  1)  offerors must submit up to five past contracts for the proposed Program Manager, and 2) offerors must submit consent letters for each major subcontractor, teaming partner proposed program manager and/or Joint venture partner.  These changes require additional information to be submitted in Volume II, but the page limitation for Volume II was not increased to account for the additional information. Would NASA please increase the page limitation to 25 pages for Volume II to account for the additional information required in Amendment 006?  

Answer 21: 1) Table L-2 in section L.19.2 was updated in Amendment 007 to allow a total page limit of 25 pages for Volume II – Past Performance.  2) The consent letters are not to be included in the page limit.  

Question 22: During the pre-proposal conference WebEx, NASA stated that they had implemented new “page limits” for the Safety and Health Plan and the Total Compensation Plan. This is inconsistent with the wording in the RFP that states that the numbers of pages shown for all of the required plans are guidelines only. Please verify that the page limits shown in Table L-2 for the Safety and Health Plan and the Total Compensation Plan are guidelines only and offerors may increase or decrease the number of pages for each of these items provided the total pages for Volume I do not exceed 180.

Answer 22: The number values listed in Table L-2, Section L.19.2 for the Safety and Health Plan and the Total Compensation Plan are guidelines only as indicated by the *, which states, “The numbers of pages shown for these items are guidelines only.  The Offeror may increase or decrease the number of pages in each submitted item, provided the total number of pages submitted for the volume does not exceed the total page limitation shown above for each volume.”  

Question 23: Amendment 006 requires that all volumes “be prepared and submitted using a non-compressed Arial font with single-spaced 12 point text….”  We request that NASA reconsider the requirement to use such a large font size for all proposal narrative and tables.  We believe that Arial 10 point, which was used by NASA in the majority of the RFP documents, is an adequate font size that is legible and facilitates readability.

Answer 23: See response to Question 12.

Question 24: Amendment 006 includes a statement that “No less than 12 point Arial font may be used for figures and tables.”  Arial 12 is a very large font and does not lend itself well to developing graphics.  Please consider revising this font size requirement to the following, or something similar: “A smaller font size and type may be used on charts, graphs, figures, diagrams, and schematics to accommodate a “make to fit” software capability; however, all text shall be legible and easily read.”

Answer 24: See response to Question 12.

Question 25: Section L.19.2 states that "No less than 12 Arial font may be used for figures and tables." The amount of space required for Tables and Figures using Arial 12 font seems excessive. We respectfully request that NASA allow a smaller font size for figures and tables, such as Arial 10 or Arial Narrow 10, which would take less space and still be legible.

Answer 25:  See response to Question 12.
Question 26: Fixed price task (1FAENOP) requirement 5 does not include the element a: Provide records and deliverable management oversight. Is this intended to be only the oversight or it is intended to include the elements in PWS 1.5, such as ensuring that final deliverables prepared are signature-ready? Are the activities to ensure that the records prepared in sections 2 and 3 environmental activities are free of grammatical errors, etc., supposed to be included in the fixed price or in the tasks 2 and 3? 
Answer 26: The Fixed Price Task Order (1FAENOP) covers the requirements in Section 1.0 of the Performance Work Statement.  In Amendment 007, requirement 5.a. was revised from “Provide records and deliverable management system oversight” to “Manage records and deliverables in accordance with Section C, Section 1.5.”  As described in Section 1.5, the activities to ensure that the records prepared in sections 2 and 3 environmental activities are free of grammatical errors, etc. are to be included in the fixed price.
Question 27: Page L-43 states “Additionally, state whether all business systems, including, but not limited to accounting, property control, purchasing, estimating, project reporting, and employee compensation, which require Government acceptance or approval (as applicable), are currently accepted/approved by DCAA, without condition.”
1. If a company has not had any of these systems reviewed because a review has not been requested, it is unfair to require something that is outside of the control of the offeror’s. Would NASA consider removing this requirement? 
Answer 27: Section L.19.6 (C) on page L-43 was revised in Amendment 007 to remove this requirement.  Section M was also revised to remove this requirement. In addition, Attachment L-5, Other Pricing Templates, was replaced in its entirety in Amendment 007 to remove the other business systems status on the Cognizant Audit Office Template (CAOT) and Section L.19.5 on page L-38 was revised to remove the reference to other business systems under the CAOT instruction.  However, please see the response to Question 2 for clarification on accounting system requirements.
Question 28: Page L-42 Requires that “the Offeror shall provide evidence of an adequate accounting system as determined by the cognizant Government administrative office for accumulating and reporting incurred costs.” The summary letter stated that there were no material changes in the RFP. However, the requirement for an offeror to provide evidence of a DCAA accounting system adequacy review with the proposal may eliminate offerors from competition and it is a material change. Since an offeror cannot request the DCAA to perform this audit, this is outside of the control of the offeror. We respectfully request that the requirement to provide evidence of an adequate system DCAA review with the proposal be eliminated and that NASA request a DCAA accounting system adequacy review before award.
Answer 28: See response to Question 2.

Question 29: Instruction L.19.3.1, TA1.B requires that offerors submit a schedule and critical path for the proposed effort as part of the narrative discussion. Based on our experience, it is difficult to present a schedule in either Primavera or Microsoft Project using Arial 12 font, it uses unnecessary space and makes the schedule difficult to consolidate in the few pages given. Would NASA consider allowing the schedule to be in a smaller font size as long as it is readable?

Answer 29: Section L.19.2(a) (page L-15) was revised in Amendment 007 to read: “Except for Volume III Cost/Price Proposal, all volumes shall be prepared and submitted using a non-compressed Arial font with single-spaced no smaller than 10 point text printed on both sides of the sheet.  No smaller than 10 point Arial font may be used for figures and tables.  Data utilizing font smaller than Arial 10 point will be not be evaluated.”  The schedule and critical path required in Section L.19.3.1, TA1.B can be in no smaller than 10 Point Arial font.

Question 30: You have more than tripled the page limitation on the Mission Suitablility Factor but there are no substantive changes for the Mission Suitability factor.  It appears that you are expecting and/or requesting much more information than previously requested, which puts a significant burden on offerors to generate more information and discussion, which increases the costs on the competitors.  What the justification for such a substantial increase when most of the offerors met the previous requirement?  

Answer 30: Prior to RFP Amendment 006, Volume I, Mission Suitability, had a total page limit of 50 pages with no page limits for the Resources Sheets or the Safety and Health Plan (SHP) and Volume IV, Plans and Other Data, had a total page limit of 100 pages for all requested plans and information with no page limit for the Total Compensation Plan (TCP).  In RFP Amendment 006, the Resources Sheets, SHP, and TCP are now included in the total page limit and all plans are required to be submitted in Volume I, Mission Suitability.  The original page limit for Volume I was increased from 50 pages to 180 pages to account for moving the plans from Volume IV to Volume I, including the SHP and TCP in the total page limit, and a new one-page limit per resources sheet per task order.  Volume IV was re-titled from, Plans and Other Data, to, Other Data, and was page limited to 15 pages.  The total page limit for Volume I and Volume IV prior to RFP Amendment 006 was 150 pages.  The total page limit for Volume I and Volume IV in RFP Amendment 006 is 195 pages and as described above now includes the Resources Sheets, SHP and TCP, which were previously not limited.

Question 31: The Amendment cover letter states that the amendment is available only for “offers that submitted timely and complete proposals in response to the original RFP.”  In its opinion sustaining the a recent protest, the GAO found that [redacted] mission suitability proposal did not comply with the RFP proposal preparation requirements.”  In particular, the GAO held that [redacted] proposal “did not ‘include a discussion regarding how the proposed FTEs were estimated.’ The GAO also concluded that [redacted] mission suitability proposal also failed to provide any narrative BOE that explained its understanding of the required non-labor resources” (emphasis added).  In light of these findings, will [redacted] be excluded from further competition?

Answer 31: The GAO decision noted that timely offers were received by six offerors in the original competition.  Additionally, the GAO decision did not recommend the removal from the competition of any offeror who submitted a timely proposal.  Amendment 006 was appropriately issued to all offerors who submitted a timely proposal in response to the original solicitation.  As the completeness of the original proposals is irrelevant in the determination of who may provide a revised proposal, that issue is not considered here and the word is removed from all prior references. 

 Question 32: You state that there are no “material” changes to the RFP.  If so, why does NASA consider it necessary to resolicit since it already had acceptable offers to the most recent RFP?

Answer 32: The Contracting Officer has discretion to take corrective actions necessary to ensure a fair and impartial competition.  Notably, the Government Accountability Office’s (GAO) decision to sustain the protest recommended that NASA obtain and evaluate revised proposals.

[bookmark: _GoBack]Question 33: In its November 4, 2011 protest decision, the U.S. Government Accountability Office determined, among other things, that [redacted] did not provide the Basis of Estimate narrative within the 50-page Mission Suitability volume, as required by the RFP.  (See [redacted]; [redacted], B-404880.4; B-404880.5; B-404880.6; November 4, 2011, at 5, n.6, and 10-12.)  Will NASA permit [redacted] to remain in the competition for the ECO contract despite its failure to submit a complete proposal in response to the original RFP?  

Answer 33: See response to Question 31.

Question 34: Will NASA permit [redacted] to compete for the ECO contract, despite the organizational conflict of interest resulting from [redacted] access to [redacted] proprietary information under the sole-source bridge contract?

Answer 34: As of this response, the Government is not aware of any unmitigated organizational conflict of interest involving any offeror in the on-going acquisition.  Organizational Conflict of Interest information is requested as part of Amendment 006, and information submitted in response to Amendment 006 will be analyzed as declared in Section M of the solicitation for eligibility for award purposes.  Such information will be examined in the context of specific facts, regardless of whether those facts are provided in the Request for Proposal (RFP) or in a proposal submission.
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